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Board of Directors and Transit Riders
San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

The comprehensive annual financial report of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with management. The MTS Board of
Directors has established an Audit Oversight Committee to provide an additional level of scrutiny to the preparation of
the annual financial report. Management of MTS is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of MTS are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. As management, we assert that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The firm of Pun & McGeady LLP,
Certified Public Accountants, has been retained to meet this requirement. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of MTS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statement; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditors
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that MTS'
financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 are fairly presented, in all material respects, in
conformity with U.S. GAAP. The independent auditors' report is presented as the first component of the financial
section of this report.

The independent audit also was designed to meet the requirements of a broader, federally mandated "Single Audit" to
meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements required the
independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited
government's internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and
legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. The reports related specifically to the Single Audit
are issued under separate cover.

U.S. GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A can be found immediately
following the report of the independent auditors.
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Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) is a California public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, Inc., San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company
(nonprofit public benefit corporations), and San Diego Vintage Trolley, Inc., a 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation, in cooperation with Chula Vista Transit. MTS is the taxicab administrator for seven cities.

MTS member agencies include the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, El Cajon, imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, San Diego, Santee, and the County of San Diego.



REPORTING ENTITY

The San Diego Metropolitan Transit System was created effective January 26, 1976 to provide the policy setting and
overall management coordination of the public transportation system in the San Diego metropolitan service area. This
service area encompasses approximately 2.3 million people residing in a 570 square mile area of San Diego County,
including the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City,
Poway, Santee, and San Diego and the unincorporated area of the County of San Diego.

MTS’ mission statement, adopted by the Board of Directors, is to enhance the personal mobility of San Diego
metropolitan area residents and visitors by:

Obtaining maximum benefit for every dollar spent.

Being the community’s major public transportation advocate.
Increasing public transportation usage per capita.

Taking a customer-oriented approach.

Offering high-quality public transportation services.
Responding to the community’s socioeconomic interests.

California law establishes the San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG) as the planning agency for San
Diego County. The responsibility and decision-making for all transportation-related planning, programming and
development activities occurs within SANDAG's nine-member Transportation Committee. Approved transportation
plans and programs are subsequently executed by SANDAG staff. Within this structure MTS and the North County
Transit District (NCTD) focus primarily on operating activities.

MTS is effectively an umbrella agency. MTS owns the assets of San Diego Trolley, Inc. (SDTI) and San Diego Transit
Corporation (SDTC), the area’s two largest transit operators. These two transit units were formed under California law
as not-for-profit public corporations and function as operating subsidiaries of MTS. SDTI and SDTC are considered
component units and are blended component units for financial reporting purposes. SDTI operates three Light Rail
Transit (LRT) routes: the Blue Line from the America Plaza Station to San Ysidro at the International Border, the
Orange Line from the Santa Fe Depot through Centre City and then east to El Cajon Transit Center, and the Green
Line from the 12th and Imperial Transit Center Bayside platform to Santee. During FY2013, MTS accomplished
significant changes to the configuration of each operating line to achieve greater efficiency and meet the transit need of
a greater number of people. SDTI operates on a total of 54.3 miles of track. SDTC operates 27 routes with an active
fleet of 260 buses.

The relationship between MTS and the transit operating subsidiaries, SDTI and SDTC, is formally established through
operating agreements and MTS-adopted corporate policies. These agreements and corporate policies specify the roles
and responsibilities of each of the organizations and outline the procedures in numerous functional areas including
auditing and budgeting, fare setting, marketing and public information, revenue-producing advertising, service
contracts, and programming of federal, state and local subsidies. The MTS Board of Directors has the policy-setting
responsibility for the operation and development of MTS’ transit operating subsidiaries as well as for the planning and
approval of capital expenditures by or on behalf of these entities. The day-to-day operating functions, labor matters
and maintenance of facilities are managed by the individual transit operators. MTS has centralized and consolidated
Security, Planning, Human Resources, Finance, Information Technology, Stores, and Purchasing for MTS and all
subsidiaries.

In addition to the bus routes operated by SDTC, MTS is financially accountable for the operation of certain other bus
routes. MTS contracts with outside parties for the operation of 70 fixed-route bus lines and paratransit services with an
active fleet of 427 buses. The contracts require full operation and maintenance of the bus services. Contract services
are accounted for in the Contracted Services Fund for financial reporting purposes.



MTS owns the San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company (SD&AE), a not-for-profit railroad holding
company entrusted with assets which include 108 miles of rail line and over 2,000 acres of property. MTS has a
contract with the San Diego and Imperial Valley Railway Co. (SDIV) for the operation of freight rail services over the
SD&AE rail line. MTS provides no subsidy to SDIV, but does receive a portion of its gross revenue. SD&AE is
considered a component unit and a blended component unit for financial reporting purposes. In December 2012,
SD&AE entered into a 99-year lease and operating agreement with Pacific Imperial Railroad, Inc. (PIR) over the 70-
mile Desert Line freight right of way in East San Diego County. The agreement provides specific performance
milestones for the first 5 years of the term, with a minimum of $1 million in annual revenue required. The agreement
may be terminated if PIR fails to meet the specified milestones. If PIR meets all milestones and commences freight
operations along the Desert Line, MTS's revenue will increase over time to 15% of gross freight revenue.

MTS also is financially accountable for the operation of Taxicab Administration services, which includes regulating
the issuance of taxi and jitney service permits in the Cities of San Diego, El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon
Grove, Poway, and Santee.

The MTS Board of Directors is comprised of 15 members with four appointed from the San Diego City Council, one
appointed from the San Diego County Board of Supervisors, one appointed from each city council of Chula Vista,
Coronado, El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, and Santee, and one member of
the public elected by other Board members to serve as Chairman.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The San Diego region continues to show moderate recovery from the economic downturn that has affected all parts of
the nation since 2008, fueled by increased military spending and moderate improvements in tourism, biotech
industries, healthcare and housing construction. San Diego's gross regional product (GRP), the total value of the
region's economy, has been forecasted to reach $180.1 billion in 2012 and $187.6 billion in 2013, increasing from the
$172.6 billion earned in 2011. Unemployment has declined in San Diego County and compares favorably to the
unemployment rate in California and the national average. Sales tax receipts have grown in the current year as have
sales tax related revenues.

The principal local source of operating subsidy for MTS’ transit programs is Transportation Development Act (TDA)
funding. One-fourth percent of the local sales tax in each California county is dedicated to transportation purposes.

On a local level, area voters approved a one-half cent transportation sales tax in 1987, called TransNet. One-third of
the sales tax proceeds is allocated for transit purposes which is further divided between MTS and North County Transit
District (MTS’ counterpart in North San Diego County) based on the proportion of the population within the area of
each jurisdiction. Prior to FY 2004, 80% of the TransNet funds had to be used for expansion of the light rail system.
The remaining 20% could be used for operations after funding a reduced price pass program for seniors, disabled, and
youth, which is capped at $5.5 million. As a result of operating budget pressures, the ratio was changed in June 2003
so that up to 40% of the TransNet program can be used for operations (increased from 20%). The original TransNet
sales tax expired in 2008, and a reauthorization measure was approved by voters in November 2004 extending the
TransNet sales tax for 40 additional years.

Long-term Financial Planning

The long-term goal of MTS is to fund operations solely with recurring revenues. The economy has continued to make
small improvements over the past 5 years, but has yet to recover fully from the economic downturn. Sales tax receipts
throughout California have continued to increase resulting in increased subsidy revenue available to MTS from both
TDA and TransNet funds. MTS continues to monitor its costs and initiate additional revenue programs, and has
initiated restoration of some service reduced in prior years. In response to significant pressure from growing pension
and benefits liabilities, MTS has made pension reform a priority. As of fiscal year 2013, all employees now contribute
towards their defined benefit pension plans, and all new members of the Amalgamated Transit Union will participate
in a defined contribution retirement plan.

As directed by the MTS Board of Directors, MTS plans to bring its contingency reserve balance from 10.0% of the
operating budget up to 12.5% over the next three years.



MTS also established a capital reserve to begin planning for the replacement of 52 SD100 light rail vehicles that are 18
years old.

Major Initiatives

In addition to the challenge of aligning operating cost with recurring revenues, MTS is also committed to keeping its
capital infrastructure in a state of good repair. During fiscal year 2013, MTS continued its ongoing programs to
upgrade its bus fleet and light rail vehicles. As of June 30, 2013, MTS accepted delivery of 54 new low-floor vehicles
as part of the Trolley Renewal project, with the final 11 to arrive during fiscal year 2014. In addition, two bus
maintenance facilities, in East County and South Bay, are in the process of being expanded and upgraded.

MTS partners with SANDAG on many regional capital projects to enhance the public transit system. This includes
three “Rapid” bus projects in the San Diego region. These routes will operate high-frequency, limited stop service to
higher-amenity stations utilizing new, articulated buses. Two of the “Rapid” bus projects are currently under
construction with an anticipated in-service date in the middle of calendar year 2014. The third project is in the final
development phase.

The Mid-Coast extension of the trolley system is another regional project; it is currently in the preliminary engineering
phase. When complete, this extension will span 11 miles between Old Town and north University City. Construction
on the Mid-Coast extension is scheduled to begin in calendar year 2016 and is anticipated to open for revenue service
in calendar year 2018.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to MTS for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. This was the seventh consecutive year and the seventeenth year overall that
MTS has achieved this prestigious award. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement MTS must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This report must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

The Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive
annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
San Diego, California

Report of Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
(MTS), which comprise of the statements of net position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and related notes to
the basic financial statements.

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of MTS as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the changes in its net position and its cash flows for the years
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



To the Board of Directors

of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
San Diego, California
Page 2

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and schedules of funding progress of defined benefits pension plans and other
postemployement healthcare plan be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise MTS’ basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund financial
statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial
statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 17, 2013, on
our consideration of MTS’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering MTS’
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

fioo § M G54y T

San Diego, California
October 17, 2013



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2013 and 2012

The following discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
(MTS) is intended to provide an overview of MTS’ financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012. This information should be used in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal, which can be found on pages i
through iv of this report.

Financial Highlights

e Net position, as reported in the statement of net position, totaled $1,493 million as of June 30, 2013, $1,409
million as of June 30, 2012 and $1,254 million as of June 30, 2011. Of this amount, $190 million was unrestricted
as of June 30, 2013, $158 million was unrestricted as of June 30, 2012, and $173 million was unrestricted as of
June 30, 2011. Total net position increased by $84 million in the current year and increased by $155 million in the
prior year. The current year increase is attributable to an increase in contributed capital offset by increases in
operating expenses and decreases in Federal, TransNet and Prop 1B subsidy revenues for capital projects.

e For the year ended June 30, 2013, the combined farebox recovery ratio (the measure of the ability to recover
operating costs through fare revenue) for San Diego Trolley, Inc., San Diego Transit Corporation, and MTS
Contracted Services was 39.92% compared to 41.05% for the year ended June 30, 2012 and 41.68% for the year
ended June 30, 2011. The current year decrease is due primarily to an increase in personnel costs related to the
amortization of the net pension asset.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to MTS’ financial statements. MTS’ financial
statements comprise two components: 1) financial statements and, 2) notes to financial statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the financial statements themselves.

Financial statements. The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of MTS’
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. In fiscal year 2013, MTS presents comparative statements
for FY2013 and FY2012.

The statement of net position presents information on all of MTS’ assets, deferred outflow of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflow of resources with the difference between the four reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of MTS is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information showing how net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but
unused vacation leave).

The statement of cash flows presents information showing the sources and uses of cash related to operating activities,
noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing activities and investing activities. In addition, the
statement provides information about significant non-cash investing, capital and financing activities.

Since MTS’ primary function is to provide transportation services to the region’s citizens and recover costs through
user fees and charges, the financial statements include business-type activities. In addition, the financial statements
include not only MTS itself (known as the primary government), but also two legally separate transit operators and one
legally separate freight railway, for which MTS is financially accountable: San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway
Company (SD&AE).



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Notes to basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning MTS’ progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and other
postemployment benefits to its employees.

Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an entity’s financial stability. In the case of
MTS, net position was $1,493 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year and $1,409 million at the end of
FY2012.

The largest portion of MTS’ net position reflects the investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by any outstanding bonds or other borrowings. Most of the investment in capital assets is comprised of trolley
system assets, buses, and construction-in-progress totaling $23 million, of which the largest project under construction
is the procurement of 65 light rail vehicles, $16 million. Prior year construction-in-progress totaled $88 million, of
which the largest projects under construction included the procurement of 65 light rail vehicles, $66 million;
procurement of buses, $14 million; and security-related trolley car enhancements, $4 million. The capital assets that
are represented by construction-in-progress will be used to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. In FY2013, MTS transferred completed projects worth $146 million to SDTC, SDTI
and Other Contracted Services. In FY2012, MTS transferred completed projects worth $151 million to SDTC, SDTI,
and Other Contracted Services.

The balance in the unrestricted component of net position increased by $32 million during the current year and
decreased $15 million in the prior year.

June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012 Change June 30, 2011 Change

Current and other assets $ 316,370,757 $ 377,313,773 $ (60,943,016) $ 299353436 $ 77,960,337
Capital assets 1,416,260,555 1,295,206,414 121,054,141 1,198,153,827 97,052,587
Total assets 1,732,631,312 1,672,520,187 60,111,125 1,497,507,263 175,012,924
Long-term liabilities outstanding 176,376,307 193,730,156 (17,353,849) 197,238,134 (3,507,978)
Other liabilities 62,945,676 69,755,429 (6,809,753) 46,571,745 23,183,684
Total liabilities 239,321,983 263,485,585 (24,163,602) 243,809,879 19,675,706
Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 1,296,216,965 1,172,815,524 123,401,441 1,073,561,720 99,253,804

Restricted 7,255,404 78,378,268 (71,122,864) 7,007,293 71,370,975

Unrestricted 189,836,960 157,840,810 31,996,150 173,128,371 (15,287,561)
Total net position $ 1493309329 _$1409034602 _$ 84274727 _$1253697384 _$ 155337218

Increases in operating revenue are attributable to an increase in riders utilizing one-way fares as well as the $2.00 fee
being charged for compass cards. Variances between FY2013 and FY2012 are attributable to significant decreases in
FTA, TransNet, and Prop 1B funding for capital projects, and a decrease in STA revenue. The current year increase in
operating expenses is attributable to an increase in personnel costs, primarily due to the amortization cost associated
with the net pension asset, and an increase in depreciation expense associated with the acquisition of new assets.



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Revenues:
Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other operating revenue
Nonoperating revenues:
Federal revenue
Transportation Development Act
State Transit Assistance
State revenue - other
TransNet funds
Other nonoperating revenue

Total revenues
Expenses:

Operating expenses
Nonoperating expenses

Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in net position before
capital contributions

Capital contributions
Increase (decrease) in net position

Net position - beginning of year
Net position - end of year

June 30, 2013 and 2012

June 30,2013  June 30, 2012 Change June 30, 2011 Change
$ 90,652,522 $ 88,280,779 $ 2371743 $ 84893386 $ 3,387,393
5,906,691 5,228,636 678,055 5,308,624 (79,988)
57,733,099 71,822,863 (14,089,764) 48,814,276 23,008,587
71,893,404 71,538,917 354,487 61,509,431 10,029,486
9,878,189 18,981,989 (9,103,800) 15,044,930 3,937,059
5,213,539 84,878,549 (79,665,010) 18,520,399 66,358,150
32,275,380 75,793,217 (43,517,837) 19,117,834 56,675,383
14,022,580 9,644,573 4,378,007 16,250,239 (6,605,666)
287,575,404 426,169,523 (138,594,119) 269,459,119 156,710,404
327,929,073 306,931,351 20,997,722 291,893,326 15,038,025
7,553,638 8,018,977 (465,339) 8,559,112 (540,135)
335,482,711 314,950,328 20,532,383 300,452,438 14,497,890
(47,907,307) 111,219,195 (159,126,502) (30,993,319) 142,212,514
132,182,034 44,118,023 88,064,011 26,806,292 17,311,731
84,274,727 155,337,218 (71,062,491) (4,187,027) 159,524,245
1,409,034,602  1,253,697,384 155,337,218  1,257,884,411 (4,187,027)
$1,493,309,329 $1,409,034,602 $ 84274727 $1.253,697,384 _$ 155,337,218

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. MTS’ investment in capital assets net of depreciation as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 amounted to
$1,416 million and $1,295 million. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, vehicles, equipment, and
construction-in-progress. Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e MTS has continued its multi-year program to acquire 65 light rail vehicles for a total cost of $239 million
through the end of FY2013. As of June 30, 2013, MTS had placed 54 new trolley cars in service, 27 in the

current year and 27 in FY2012.

e MTS continues to modernize the bus fleet. In FY2013, 53 buses were placed into service for a total cost of $24

million.

e MTS purchased 40 new ADA buses for a total cost of $2.8 million. As of June 30, 2013, MTS had placed all

40 buses in service.

e Completed capital projects totaling $132 million were transferred from SANDAG to MTS and its component

units during FY2013.



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
June 30, 2013 and 2012

CAPITAL ASSETS
(Net of depreciation)

2013 2012 2011
Land $ 240453415 $ 240,471,287 $ 224,793,077
Buildings 727,660,383 648,037,600 654,759,921
Vehicles 378,389,642 272,442,209 179,108,728
Equipment & other 47,215,318 46,728,919 42,137,343
Construction-in-progress 22,541,797 87,526,399 97,354,759
Total $ 1,416,260,555 $ 1,295206,414 $ 1,198,153,828

Additional information on MTS’ capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, MTS has one capital lease obligation outstanding in the amount
of $4.2 million. In addition, MTS has two finance obligations outstanding relating to a lease/leaseback transaction
entered into in 1995 and Pension Obligation Bonds issued in fiscal year 2005 for a total obligation of $141.1 million.
In connection with the lease/leaseback transaction, MTS placed funds on deposit, which, together with the interest
earned on the deposits, will be sufficient to cover the amounts due under the finance obligation.

The pension obligation bonds were issued in fiscal year 2005 for $77.5 million to make a contribution to the SDTC
retirement plan and reduce its unfunded liability. During 2010, MTS retired 14% and refunded 41%, or $30 million, of
the bonds outstanding; this refunding was retired in FY2013. Additional information about MTS' long-term debt can
be found in Note 10 to the financial statements.

Bond Ratings

Standard & Poor's Ratings Services provided an underlying rating for the Pension Obligation Bonds at “A” in 2013.
Additional information on MTS’ long-term debt can be found in Note 10 to the financial statements.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of MTS’ finances for all those with an interest in the
government’s finances. If you have questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or need
additional financial information, visit our website at www.sdmts.com or direct inquiries to the Chief Financial Officer,
MTS, 1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments restricted for debt service payable within one year

Accounts and other receivables

Due from other governments

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Cash and certificates of deposit restricted for capital support
Investments restricted for debt service and capital projects

Unamortized bond issuance cost
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Net pension asset

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Unearned revenue
Accrued expenses
Retention payable
Due within one year:
Compensated absences payable
Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims
Long-term debt
Long-term debt payable from restricted assets

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Retention payable from restricted assets
Long-term debt payable from restricted assets
Due in more than one year:
Compensated absences payable
Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims
Net other postemployment benefits obligation
Long-term debt, due in more than one year

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

2013 2012
$ 67,342,108 37,090,439
1,807,484 1,678,414
7,487,415 12,124,112
64,554,910 64,126,299
17,673,252 17,129,732
1,150,754 2,270,695
160,015,923 134,419,691
12,143,571 82,396,323
116,056,580 117,681,495
329,045 360,626
1,416,260,555 1,295,206,414
27,825,638 42,455,638
1,572,615,389 1,538,100,496
1,732,631,312 1,672,520,187
12,931,617 35,363,435
20,184,156 6,803,474
4,223,070 2,214,435
10,123,462 11,103,737
334,827 57,256
7,455,502 7,090,823
3,394,889 3,036,806
2,490,669 2,407,049
1,807,484 1,678,414
62,945,676 69,755,429
7,487,745 6,435,064
113,457,002 115,264,486
4,713,238 5,133,802
8,854,074 11,227,194
13,695,813 12,118,669
28,168,435 43,550,941
176,376,307 193,730,156
239,321,983 263,485,585
1,206,216,965 1,172,815,524
7,255,404 78,378,268
189,836,960 157,840,810

$  1493309,329 1,409,034,602




San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Operating revenues:
Passenger revenue
Advertising
Charter
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personnel costs
Outside services
Transit operations funding
Materials and supplies
Energy costs
Risk management
Miscellaneous
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating (loss)

Public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Federal revenue
Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds
State Transit Assistance (STA) funds
State revenue - other
TransNet funds
Other local subsidies
Investment earnings
Interest expense
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Other expenses
Amortization of bond issuance costs

Total public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributed capital
Contributed capital, net
Changes in net position

Net Position:
Beginning of year

End of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

2013 2012
$ 90651622 $ 88,094,391
972,190 784,204

900 186,388
4,934,501 4,444,432
96,559,213 93,509,415
123,720,353 112,536,825
67,413,522 66,050,312
3,570,758 3,720,825
8,468,837 7,977,299
22,572,397 22,688,865
2,902,322 4,029,950
6,492,642 5,115,682
92,788,242 84,811,593
327,929,073 306,931,351
(231,369,860) (213,421,936)
57,733,099 71,822,863
71,893,404 71,538,917
9,878,189 18,981,989
5,213,539 84,878,549
32,275,380 75,793,217
6,951,227 2,642,020
6,266,933 7,622,252
(7,520,331) (8,013,519)
804,420 (619,699)
(1,726) (4,155)
(31,581) (1,303)
183,462,553 324,641,131
(47,907,307) 111,219,195
132,182,034 44,118,023
84,274,727 155,337,218
1,409,034,602 1,253,697,384
$ 1493309329 $  1409,034,602




San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users 94,759,953 $ 93,641,105
Payments to suppliers (122,201,949) (109,954,300)
Payments to employees (115,897,734) (105,546,593)
Payments for damage and injury (2,560,951) (2,414,484)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (145,900,681) (124,274,272)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Public support funds received 203,981,276 336,075,331
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 203,981,276 336,075,331
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Debt service costs (16,867,535) (9,114,411)
Property acquisition (82,816,993) (118,522,969)
Proceeds from disposal of assets 1,409,694 1,493,031
Net cash provided (used) by capital financing activities (98,274,834) (126,144,349)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received on investments 193,156 89,221
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 193,156 89,221
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (40,001,083) 85,745,931
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 119,486,762 33,740,831
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 79,485,679 $ 119,486,762
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents 67,342,108 $ 37,090,439
Cash and certificates of deposit restricted for capital support 12,143,571 82,396,323
Total cash and cash equivalents 79,485,679 $ 119,486,762

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Reconciliation of operating (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Operating (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of net pension asset
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts and other receivables
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Unearned revenue
Net other postemployment benefits obligation
Compensated absences payable
Accrued damage, injury and employee claims

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Contributions of capital assets from SANDAG

Contributions/adjustments of capital assets from outside parties

Total contributions of capital assets

Increase in fair value of investments

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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2013 2012
(231,369,860) $  (213,421,936)
92,788,242 84,811,593
14,630,000 6,755,000
(3,807,895) 393,602
(543,520) (4,529,385)
1,119,941 (103,920)
(23,282,245) 6,782,301
(980,275) (6,013,542)
2,008,635 (261,919)
1,577,144 1,660,389
(55,385) (182,455)
2,015,037 (164,000)
85,469,179 89,147,664
(145900,681) _$  (124,274,272)
131,736,037 $ 44,118,023
445,997 -
132,182,034 $ 44118023
258247 $ 1,563,278




This page intentionally left blank.

12



NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Table of Contents
Note 1 — Summary of Significant AcCOUNTING POLICIES .........ccveiiiiieic e 15
F A L ToTo ] £ T T = ] (1 YRS SRS 15
B. FINANCIAl STAIEIMENTS......ctiiiticcic ettt st et e e be e sbe e sbeesaeesabeesbeetsestbeenbeenbeebeeas 16
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation...........c..cccocvvevererinane. 16
D. Use of Restricted/UNeStriCtEa ASSEIS ... ...uiiiieieeiieiiecteeseeseeste e te e te e ste e s re e s e e sreesaesbeebeeseeeneeenreens 18
E. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and INVESIMENTS ..........ccciiiiiiieie e snes 18
T 01T 01 (] Y SR PRSPSRR 19
G. Prepaid Items and Other ASSELS......ccuiii ettt sttt et e s beesa e besreesbeseesbestaeeenes 19
[ TR O Vo] | oL PSPPSR 19
I CONSTIUCTION-TN=PIOGIESS ... .ttt b b bbbt b bbbt e b e e ene s 20
B N T g T T AN ST R 20
K. COMPENSALEU ADSENCES ... oo eeeeenie et eteeie ettt ettt e seesteaseeseeeteesteseeeneesbeaseessesteeseesbesseeneeseeaseensesseeeeseeasennsens 20
I oo To B T @ o] 1o LA o] 1SRRI 20
M. REfUNAING OF DEDL.......oi e e e et e e te e sre e sreesreesneess e e aneeeneeenraenreeas 20
N, USE OF ESHIMALES ... eeiivieiiee ittt e st e st e e s te e eae e eaeeeteesteesaeesaeesneesseeaneeaneeaneeenneens 20
(@ Aol ol o TN T (] 1o [ O 4 g0 T PSSR 21
Note 2 — Cash, Cash Equivalents, and INVESTMENTS ..........ccccoeiiiiiieiie s s eeenre e 21
NOte 3 — ACCOUNTS RECEIVADIE ... .cui it e st et a et e st e et e e besreenae e 25
A. Accounts and Other RECEIVADIES.........cviiiiiiii e et rbe e re e ete e 25
B. Due from Other GOVEIMMENTS .......iiiieii e see et te e te s te e st e s e e s e e s sbe e be e taesteesteesraesneeeneaereens 25
N[0 (R 1Y /<] 0110 YOOV R UR PO OPRTRTS 25
N0 (=R T O T T} v | Sty OSSR 26
NOTE 6 — NET PENSION ASSEL......eiitiiiiieiie e ee et ste e e e ste e s e s e st e s be e be e be e s beesteesaeesseesseesatesbeeteesteessaeaseeaneeaneeenseens 26
NOte 7 — DUE 10 Other GOVEIMIMENTS. ......iiiii it ae e ee e ste e s te e sreesreesneessaesneeaneeeneeenreens 27
NOTE 8 — UNEAINEU REVENUE ......oeiiiiiiie ittt ettt ste s e et e e et e et e st e ste e aseeeseeeteesteesseesaeesaeessneaneeaneeeneeenreeas 27
o]t O] ] oo L Y27 | o ST 27
N0 C= I T o R =T T =T o ) OSSP 28
AL SUIMIMATY L.ttt ettt ettt b e oo bt e s bt e s hb e sh b e eH bt e R bt e a ke e bt e ek e e eh e e eh s e e R b e e ke e ebe e sbeesbeeebbenbbeenbeanbeebeens 28
2 T O o] | v = - OSSPSR 29
LR T -V (ot @] o] [T T[] 30
N[0 (=T Rl ] 1Y/ P U= Vo T=T o 1T o | SRR 31
N[0 (=T @0 ) 1 Vo =T o] TSR 32
Note 13 — Postemployment Health Care BeNefitS..........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 33
Note 14 — EMployee Retir€MENT SYSTEMS .......oiiiii ettt r e resneeae s 36
y N I IS T o 0T I I OSSR 36
2 J 5 ISR 38
Note 15 — Other Required Individual FUNd DiSCIOSUTES...........cooiiiiiiie et 39
NOtE 16 — SUDSEQUENT EVENTS. ... .ottt ettt s te s et sre et e teeteeseeseeeneeneesreenne e 39

14



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying basic financial statements of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (U.S. GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting standards. The more significant of MTS’ accounting
policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

MTS (also known as San Diego Metropolitan Transit Development Board) was formed on January 26, 1976 by
passage of California Senate Bill 101 to plan, construct, and operate (or let contracts to operate) exclusive public
mass transit guideways in the urbanized south coastal area of San Diego County. MTS has certain responsibilities
for near-term transportation planning and administration of federal and state transportation funds within the area
under its jurisdiction. The Board of Directors of MTS consists of 15 members composed of four appointees from
the San Diego City Council; one appointee each from the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, EI Cajon, Imperial
Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, and Santee; one appointee from the San Diego County
Board of Supervisors; and a chairman elected by the other 14 members.

On January 1, 2003, California Senate Bill 1703 (SB 1703) became effective. SB 1703 required the consolidation
of the planning and programming functions of MTS and the North San Diego County Transit District (NCTD) into
the San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG) in an initial transfer to take place prior to July 1, 2003.
SB 1703 also required the consolidation of certain project development and construction functions of MTS and
NCTD into SANDAG in a subsequent transfer to take place prior to January 30, 2004. The initial transfer
occurred on July 1, 2003, and the subsequent transfer occurred on October 13, 2003. W.ith these actions,
employees were transferred from MTS and NCTD to SANDAG, and certain planning, development, and
construction functions were also transferred. As a result, MTS” activities since the consolidation have been
focused on operating public transit systems in the urbanized area identified above. In addition to the consolidation
required by SB 1703, MTS dissolved the independent Board of Directors of San Diego Transit Corporation
(SDTC) and Board of Directors of San Diego Trolley, Inc. (SDTI). MTS now acts as the Board of Directors for all
three agencies, MTS, SDTC, and SDTI. Beginning in FY2004, SDTC and SDTI are presented as blended
component units.

These basic financial statements present MTS and its legally separate component units, entities for which MTS is
considered to be financially accountable. Because MTS appoints a majority of the component units’ boards of
directors, the boards are substantively the same, and MTS is able to impose its will on the component units, MTS
presents blended component units. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance,
part of MTS' operations.

Included within the reporting entity as blended component units:

San Diego Transit Corporation: On July 1, 1985, MTS purchased the assets used by and acquired sole
ownership of San Diego Transit Corporation (SDTC) from the City of San Diego for $1. SDTC has entered
into an operating agreement with MTS to operate a public transportation bus system in the City of San Diego
and certain regional routes within MTS’ jurisdictions. The current agreement, which was approved in
December 2006, was renewed on June 23, 2011, as an open-ended agreement terminable upon six months'
notice by either party. SDTC continues to provide local service to a number of adjoining cities under pre-
existing contracts. Purchases or construction of bus capital items are made by MTS with whom title remains,
and are contributed to SDTC upon completion of a project or when individually purchased by MTS. SDTC’s
assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and expenses are included in MTS’ financial statements as a blended
component unit. This agency has the same governing board as MTS and provides services directly to the
public.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A. Reporting Entity (Continued)

San Diego Trolley, Inc.: San Diego Trolley, Inc. (SDTI) was organized by MTS in August 1980. SDTI was
created to operate and maintain the Light Rail Transit (LRT) system pursuant to an operating agreement with
MTS. The current agreement, which was approved in December 2006, was renewed on June 23, 2011, as an
open-ended agreement terminable upon six months' notice by either party. Purchases or construction of LRT
capital items are made by MTS with whom title remains, and are contributed to SDTI upon completion of a
project or when individually purchased by MTS. SDTI’s assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and
expenses are included in MTS’ financial statements as a blended component unit. This agency has the same
governing board as MTS and provides services directly to the public.

San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company: MTS purchased the San Diego and Arizona Eastern
Railway Company (SD&AE) in 1979. SDTI operates on a portion of the line and private operators provide
freight service on a portion of the line. Purchases of capital items are made by MTS with whom title remains,
and are contributed to SD&AE. SD&AE’s assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and expenses are included
in MTS’ financial statements as a blended component unit. This agency has a separate governing board, which
is appointed by MTS. Separate financial reports are not available.

B. Financial Statements

The Financial Statements (i.e., the statement of net position, the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in
net position, and statement of cash flows) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and
its component units. The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position demonstrates the degree to
which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The Financial Statements are reported using the “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as all eligibility
requirements have been met. Interest associated with the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so has been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period.

In 2013, MTS implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. The Statement of Net Position reports separate sections for
Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources, when applicable.

Deferred Outflows of Resources represent outflows of resources (consumption of net position) that apply to
future periods and that, therefore, will not be recognized as an expense until that time.

Deferred Inflows of Resources represent inflows of resources (acquisition of net position) that apply to future
periods and that, therefore, are not recognized as a revenue until that time.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)
MTS receives funding primarily from the following revenue sources:
Passenger Revenue

Passenger fares comprised approximately 36 percent and 38 percent of MTS' $249.4 million and $232.9
million operating budget for FY2013 and FY2012, respectively.

Other Operating Revenues

MTS receives a variety of operating revenues that are not received directly from passenger fares. The
sources of these revenues are advertising, interest income, rental and land management income, income
related to Taxicab administration, income from the SD&AE, and other miscellaneous income.

Non Operating Revenues

MTS receives subsidies that are derived from federal, state and local tax revenues. MTS does not levy or
collect any tax funds, but receives allocated portions of tax funds through federal, state and local granting
agencies.

Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

FTA revenues are funded by a federal gas tax and revenues of the federal general fund. Effective
October 1, 2012 the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users
(SAFETEA-LU) Legislation was replaced with Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21)
which reauthorized surface transportation programs through Fiscal Year 2014. Under MAP-21, MTS
receives Section 5307 and Section 5337 grants which are earmarked for capital assistance and preventive
maintenance. In addition, MTS also receives Section 5311 and Section 5311F grants for operations. The
Job Access Reverse Commute (JARC) grants which are used for operations have been eliminated. MTS
expects to receive JARC funding for the next 1-2 years from grants previously awarded.

Transit Security Grant Program (TSGP)

The Transit Security Grant Program (TSGP) is administered by the Department of Homeland Security
(DHS). The program provides funds to owners and operators of transit systems to protect critical surface
transportation infrastructure and the traveling public from acts of terrorism, major disasters, and other
emergencies.

Compressed Natural Gas Rebate

Refunds on nontaxable uses of fuel are issued by the IRS. Authorization to continue the refund program
was extended retroactively through December 2013.

Transportation Development Act (TDA)

TDA provides funding for public transit operators. This state fund is one quarter of a percent of the 8.0
percent sales tax assessed in the region. SANDAG is responsible for apportionment of these funds within
the San Diego region. As economic conditions improve, sales tax receipts have increased over the prior
year, and as a result the TDA funds available for disbursement have increased as well.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

State Transit Assistance (STA)

STA funding comes from the Public Transportation Act (PTA) which derives its revenue from the state
sales tax on gasoline. These funds are designated as discretionary or formula. The former is appropriated
by the legislature. The latter is a formula based upon population and fares generated.

Proposition 1B Revenue (Prop 1B)

The California Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Act of 2006,
approved by the voters as Proposition 1B (Prop 1B), in November 2006 authorizes the issuance of $19.9
billion in general obligation bonds for the purpose of improving highway safety, traffic reduction, air
quality, and port security.

Other State Revenue

MediCal provides further funding support specifically tied to several ADA Paratransit routes to aid
patients in their transportation to medical appointments.

TransNet

TransNet funds are derived from the Proposition A one-half cent local transportation sales tax that was
approved by area voters in November 1987. The original ordinance expired in 2008, but has been extended
to 2048 by subsequent voter approval. The ordinance allocated one-third of the sales tax proceeds for
transit purposes, which are further divided between MTS and North County Transit District (NCTD) based
on the proportion of the population with the area of each jurisdiction. TransNet funds are also apportioned
by SANDAG.

Other Local Subsidies

The City of San Diego provides Maintenance of Effort funds to aid ADA efforts. In addition, SANDAG
provides funds for the operation of certain express bus routes and NCTD provides partial subsidy for the
Sorrento Valley Coaster Connection.

D. Use of Restricted/Unrestricted Assets

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is MTS’ policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

E. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Investments of pooled cash consist primarily of bankers’ acceptances, certificates of deposit, pooled investment
funds, liquidity funds, governmental bonds, and commercial paper. Investments are stated at fair value, which is
based on quoted market price. Money market investments and participating interest earning investment contracts
that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid temporary investments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less are considered cash equivalents.

MTS participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California titled Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF), which has invested a portion of the pool funds in structured notes and asset-backed securities. LAIF’s
investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the State of California collateralizing these
investments. In addition, these structured notes and assets-backed securities are subject to market risk and to
change in interest rates. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares. MTS also
participates in the San Diego County Investment Pool, which is a local government investment pool managed by
the County Treasurer's Office on behalf of the Investment Pool participants.

Certain disclosure requirements, if applicable for deposit and investment risk, are specified for the following areas:
e Interest Rate Risk
o Credit Risk
— Owverall
— Custodial Credit Risk
— Concentration of Credit Risk
e Foreign Currency Risk

F. Materials and Supplies Inventory

Inventories are valued at the weighted average unit cost.

G. Prepaid Items and Other Assets

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the fiscal year ended are recorded as
prepaid items.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets include land and right-of-way, buildings and infrastructure assets, vehicles, and equipment. Capital
assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the
asset’s life are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital asset improvements are recorded as assets. SDTC has
recorded assets received from the City of San Diego and the County Transit System at net book value in order to
reflect SDTC’s custodial accountability for the assets.

Under the operating agreements between MTS and SDTC and SDTI, SDTC and SDTI are required to pay a license
fee to MTS for the use of certain capital assets. Due to SDTC’s and SDTI’s continued shortage of operating funds
sufficient to cover recurring expenditures, the payment of these fees is considered remote, and therefore, these
amounts were not recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements. Buildings, vehicles, and equipment of
the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

19



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

H. Capital Assets (Continued)

Assets Years
Building and structures 2010 30
Vehicles and buses 5t0 25
Equipment and other capital assets 3t0 10
Capital leases 3t040

I.  Construction-in-Progress

Costs incurred for construction associated with the bus and LRT systems are capitalized as construction-
in-progress until such time as they are complete and operational. Upon completion, they are contributed to SDTC
and SDTI to reflect their custodial accountability for the assets. Depreciation commences at the time of
contribution. Assets acquired through capital leases are capitalized.

J. Net Pension Asset

A pension asset was created when MTS paid into the SDTC retirement plan an amount in excess of its annual
required contribution (ARC). The ARC is an actuarially calculated amount that is sufficient to fund future costs
and extinguish any existing unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL). In October 2004, MTS made a payment
of $76,282,336 to SDTC Retirement Plan from the proceeds of the issuance of pension obligation bonds, of which
$69,050,638 was to reduce SDTC’s UAAL as calculated at that time.

K. Compensated Absences

It is MTS’ policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused personal leave time up to a maximum of
400 hours, which includes both vacation and sick pay benefits. All personal leave time is accrued when incurred.

L. Long-Term Obligations

Debt premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using
the straight-line method. Long-term debt is reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Debt
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

M. Refunding of Debt

Gains or losses occurring from current or advance refunding of debt of the governmental funds have been deferred
and are being amortized into expense using the straight-line method over the original remaining life of the old debt
or the life of the new debt, whichever is less.

N. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reported period. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

O. Accounting Changes

GASB has issued Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements
(SCA). The requirements of this Statement improve financial reporting by establishing recognition, measurement,
and disclosure requirements for SCAs for both transferors and governmental operators, requiring governments to
account for and report SCAs in the same manner, which improves the comparability of financial statements. This
Statement became effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011 and did not have an impact on MTS’
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013.

GASB has issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 34. The requirements of this Statement result in financial reporting entity financial
statements being more relevant by improving guidance for including, presenting, and disclosing information about
component units and equity interest transactions of a financial reporting entity. This Statement became effective
for periods beginning after June 15, 2012 and did not have an impact on MTS’ financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2013.

GASB has issued Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in
Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. This Statement combines the authoritative
accounting and financial reporting of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) and the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”). The Statement eliminates the need for financial statement
preparers and auditors to determine which FASB and AICPA pronouncement provisions apply to state and local
governments. This Statement became effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011 and did not have a
significant impact on MTS’ financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013.

GASB has issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position. The requirement of this Statement standardizes the presentation of the deferred
inflows and outflows of resources and their effects on a government’s net position. This Statement became
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The implementation of this Statement to MTS was
limited to renaming “Net Assets” to “Net Position” in the 2013 financial statements.

Note 2 — Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

A summary of cash, cash equivalents, and investments at June 30, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents $ 67,342,108 $ 37,090,439
Cash and certificates of deposit restricted for capital support 12,143,571 82,396,323
Investments restricted for debt service and capital projects - Current 1,807,484 1,678,414
Investments restricted for debt service and capital projects - Noncurrent 116,056,580 117,681,495
Total cash and investments $ 197,349,743 $ 238,846,671
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note 2 — Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments consisted as follows on June 30, 2013 and 2012:

Fair Value
Investment type 2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents:
Demand Deposits $ 25229120 $ 28,077,291
Retention Trust Account 7,487,745 6,435,064
San Diego County Investment Pool 4,655,826 75,961,259
State of California - Local Agency Investment Fund 42,112,988 9,013,148
Total cash and cash equivalents 79,485,679 119,486,762
Investments:
U.S. Treasuries 39,171,173 38,924,428
Bank Investment Contract 78,692,891 80,435,481
Total investments 117,864,064 119,359,909
Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments $ 197,349,743 $ 238,846,671

At year end the carrying amount of demand deposits was $25,299,120 and the bank balance was $26,774,449
compared to $28,077,291 and $29,038,991 in the previous year, of which the total amount was collateralized or
insured with securities held by the pledging financial institutions in MTS’ name as discussed below.

All cash accounts in MTS, including SDTC and SDTI, are pooled and swept nightly to a concentration account. Funds
required to be held by fiscal agents under the provisions of bond indentures are not included in the pooled cash
account.

Investments

Under the provisions of MTS’ investment policy and in accordance with California Government Code, MTS is
authorized to invest or deposit in the following:

e Securities of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities

e Obligations of the State of California or any local agency within the state rated “A” or higher by Standard and
Poor’s Corporation or Moody’s Investor Services, Inc.

Repurchase agreements

Bankers’ acceptances

Commercial paper rated “A” or higher by Standard and Poor’s Corporation or Moody’s Investor Services, Inc.
Medium-term corporate notes rated “A” or higher by Standard and Poor’s Corporation or Moody’s Investor
Services, Inc.

Negotiable certificates of deposit

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) established by the State Treasurer

San Diego County Pooled Money Fund

Passbook savings or money market demand deposits with an FDIC, SIPC, or SAIF insured financial institution
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Note 2 — Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)

San Diego County Investment Pool

The San Diego County Investment Pool is a local government investment pool managed by the County Treasurer’s
Office on behalf of Investment Pool participants. Depositors in the Investment Pool include both mandatory
participants, those agencies required by law to deposit their funds with the County Treasurer’s Office, and voluntary
participants, agencies that place their funds in the Investment Pool as an investment option. Voluntary participants,
including cities, fire districts, and various special districts accounted for approximately 8.8% of the Investment Pool as
of June 30, 2013.

Pursuant to Section 27130-27137 of the California Government Code, the County Board of Supervisors has established
the Treasurer's Oversight Committee ("TOC") that monitors and reviews the Investment Policy. The TOC consists of
members appointed from the districts or offices that they represent, and up to five members of the public having
expertise in, or an academic background in public finance.

To mitigate credit risk, the Investment Pool's Investment Policy, which is more restrictive than the Government Code,
places a minimum standard on the ratings of investments held in the Investment Pool. Investments in securities other
than those guaranteed by the U.S. Treasury or Government Sponsored Enterprises must have a credit rating of no less
than "A" for long-term or “Al1” for short-term. Non-rated securities include sweep accounts, collateralized certificates
of deposit and repurchase agreements. Sweep accounts and collateralized certificates of deposit must be FDIC insured
and collateralized with securities held by a named agent of the depository. Repurchase agreements are collateralized
by securities, authorized by the California Government Code Section 53601, having fair market value of 102% or
greater than the amount of the repurchase agreement. The investment pool does not hold any investments in structured
notes or asset-backed securities.

As of June 30, 2013, MTS had $4,655,826 invested in the San Diego County Investment Pool, compared to
$75,961,259 at June 30, 2012.

Local Agency Investment Funds

MTS’ investments with Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) include a portion of the pool funds invested in
Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. These investments include the following:

e Structured Notes - debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow characteristics (coupon
rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one or more indices and/or that have embedded
forwards or options.

o Asset-Backed Securities - the bulk of which are mortgage-backed securities, entitle their purchasers to receive
a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and interest repayments from a pool of
mortgages (such as CMO’s) or credit card receivables.

LAIF is overseen by the Local Agency Investment Advisory Board, which consists of five members, in accordance
with State statute.

As of June 30, 2013, MTS had $42,112,988 invested in LAIF, which had invested 1.96% of the pool investment funds
in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities compared to $9,013,148 and 3.47% at June 30, 2012.
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Note 2 — Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, MTS’ investment policy limits
investments to a maximum of five years unless otherwise approved by the Board. The investment instruments with
maturities beyond five years are held for scheduled repayment of long-term debt. Maturities are scheduled to permit
MTS to meet all projected obligations.

Credit Risk

MTS’ investment policy limits investments in commercial paper and negotiable certificates of deposit to instruments
rated “A” or better by Standard and Poor’s or Moody’s Investor Services, Inc. In the current year, MTS does not hold
investments in commercial papers or certificates of deposit. Other investment instruments, including deposits in LAIF;
San Diego County Investment Pool; U.S. Government taxable bonds; and a bank investment contract, are not rated and
do not require ratings.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy limits the amount of the percentage of the portfolio that can be invested by the type of
investment for certain types of investments. MTS is in compliance with investment type percentages of the total
portfolio of the investment policy.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial
credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the broker or dealer to a transaction, a
government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure
the MTS’ cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code states that collateral pledged in this manner
shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus,
collateral for cash deposits is considered to be held in MTS’ name.

The market value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the MTS’ cash deposits. California law also allows
institutions to secure MTS deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the MTS’
total cash deposits. MTS may waive collateral requirements for cash deposits which are fully insured up to $250,000
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. MTS, however, has not waived the collateralization requirements.

Summary of Investments to Maturity

Investments held by MTS grouped by maturity date at June 30, 2013 and 2012, are shown below:

Maturity 2013 2012
Current to one year $ 79485679 $ 119,486,762
One to five years 39,171,173 38,924,428
Five to ten years - -
Ten to twenty years 78,692,891 80,435,481
Total $ 197,349,743 $ 238,846,671
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Note 3 — Accounts Receivable
A. Accounts and Other Receivables

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the net realizable accounts and other receivables consisted of the following:

2013 2012
Interest receivable $ 2910105 $ 2,976,781
Passenger revenue - General Public 2,188,076 -
Pension plan receivable 1,255,716 8,209,465
Miscellaneous trade receivables 687,683 517,068
Advertising receivable 445,835 420,798
Total accounts and other receivables $ 7487415 $ 12124112

B. Due from Other Governments

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, amounts due from other governments consisted of the following:

2013 2012

FTA Grant Funds $ 47,082,147 $ 47,860,775
STA Funds 5,791,324 4,843,032
Passenger revenue 3,538,468 5,246,831
SANDAG - project/route reimbursements 3,468,099 1,307,296
U.S. Treasury Department 1,651,284 1,042
County of San Diego - MediCal 1,112,738 1,394,591
City of Chula Vista 745,907 188,388
Department of Homeland Security 649,937 435,503
SANDAG - TransNet 404,299 703,790
State of California 58,965 234,550
North County Transit District-shared costs 49,692 94,910
City of San Diego 2,050 84,464
County of San Diego - TDA - 1,731,127

Total due from other governments $ 64554910 $ 64,126,299

Note 4 — Inventory

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, inventory consists of the following repair and maintenance parts for revenue vehicles:

2013 2012
San Diego Transit Corp. $ 2249585 $ 2,300,244
San Diego Trolley, Inc. 15,423,667 14,829,488
Total inventory $ 17673252 $ 17,129,732
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Note 5 — Capital Assets

MTS converted $151 million in capital assets from CIP to assets in service compared to $155 million in FY2012.
Capital asset additions totaling $131.7 million were contributed by SANDAG, including $21.5 million to SDTC, and
$110.2 million to SDTI. In FY2012, the contributions from SANDAG totaled $44.0 million.

A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Deletions June 30, 2013
Capital assets, not depreciated
Land and right-of-way $ 240471287 $ - 3 (17,872) $ 240,453,415
Construction-in-progress 87,526,399 85,516,636 (150,501,238) 22,541,797
Total capital assets, not depreciated 327,997,686 85,516,636 (150,519,110) 262,995,212
Capital assets, depreciated:
Buildings and structures 1,284,786,118 131,358,102 (2,836,934)  1,413,307,286
Buses and vehicles 530,564,522 138,314,777 (7,100,681) 661,778,618
Equipment and other 88,050,458 9,176,022 (117,074) 97,109,406
Capital lease property 12,091,981 - - 12,091,981
Total capital assets, depreciated 1,915,493,079 278,848,901 (10,054,689)  2,184,287,291
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures (639,960,450) (51,357,445) 2,836,934 (688,480,961)
Buses and vehicles (258,122,313) (32,365,779) 7,099,116 (283,388,976)
Equipment and other (41,321,539) (8,687,144) 114,595 (49,894,088)
Capital lease property (8,880,049) (377,874) - (9,257,923)
Total accumulated depreciation (948,284,351) (92,788,242) 10,050,645 (1,031,021,948)
Total capital assets, depreciated, net 967,208,728 186,060,659 (4,044)  1,153,265,343
Total capital assets $1,295206,414 _$ 271,577,295 _$(150,523,154) _$1,416,260,555

Depreciation expense for capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was comprised of the following:

2013 2012
General operations $ 1361426 $ 1,246,870
Other contracted services 12,305,236 11,249,023
San Diego Transit Corporation 14,121,961 14,612,267
San Diego Trolley, Inc. 64,999,619 57,703,433
Total $ 92788242 $ 84811593

Note 6 — Net Pension Asset

In August 2004, MTS issued the 2004 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds to fund 85% of the SDTC’s unfunded
accrued actuarial liability (UAAL) and the normal cost reimbursement for the fiscal year 2005. As a result, the Pension
Obligation Bonds of $77,490,000 were sold and $76,282,336 was deposited into the pension plan in October 2004. Of
this amount $7,231,698 was funded for the FY2005 contribution and $69,050,638 was funded for prior year unfunded
accrued actuarial liability. As of June 30, 2013, the Net Pension Asset amounted to $27,825,638, compared to
$42,455,638 for FY2012.
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Note 7 — Due to Other Governments

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, amounts due to other governments consisted of the following:

2013 2012
SANDAG - Subsidy revenue for construction projects in process $ 18172628 $ 4,531,369
SANDAG - CIP Reimbursement 1,182,154 462,483
North County Transit District 295,945 64,143
City of Lemon Grove - TDA Funds 134,122 121,170
City of San Diego - Shared Revenue 122,338 104,359
City of EI Cajon - TDA Funds 90,883 90,890
State of California 45,638 666,505
City of Poway - TDA Funds 67,977 60,027
City of La Mesa - TDA Funds 51,500 104,000
City of Coronado - TDA Funds 20,600 18,816
County of San Diego 371 47,091
SANDAG - Pass Sales - 357,526
City of Santee - TDA Funds - 100,000
SANDAG - Compass Card Program - 75,095
Total due to other governments $ 20,184,156 $ 6,803,474
Note 8 — Unearned Revenue
At June 30, 2013 and 2012, unearned revenue consisted of the following:
2013 2012
Fare media payments received in advance $ 2787666 $ 1,124,825
Lease payments received in advance 898,185 595,886
Deposit from City of Mendoza for sale of light rail vehicles 428,341 -
County funds - 4S Ranch development 98,570 219,049
Land management deposits 10,308 21,225
Advertising revenue received in advance - 253,450
Total uneared revenue $ 4223070 $ 2214435

Note 9 — Commodity Swap

On April 27, 2011, MTS entered into a commodity swap agreement with Deutsche Bank AG in an effort to better
manage costs and remove market volatility related to the acquisition of natural gas for fueling its bus fleet. Under the
terms of the agreement, MTS purchased natural gas at market prices from British Petroleum, and Deutsche Bank
guaranteed that the total price paid by MTS would be equal to $4.698 MMBTU as fixed in the contract.

Notional
Type Obijective Quantity Effective Date Matures Terms
Hedge natural 732 000 Pay fixed price
Fuel contract ~ gas market price MMlBTU 7/1/2011 6/30/2012 $4.698 per
changes MMBTU
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Note 9 — Commodity Swap (Continued)

During the period of the agreement (FY2012) MTS paid $2,688,798 to British Petroleum for natural gas purchases and
paid an additional $978,496 to Deutsche Bank under the terms of the pricing guarantee.

While the commodity swap did not provide a reduction in the total cost of natural gas, it did shield MTS from seasonal
price variances. A commodity swap contract was not in place for FY2013.

Note 10 — Long-Term Debt

A. Summary

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2013:

Amounts due
Balance Balance Amounts due in more than
July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions June 30, 2013 within one year one year
MTS:
Capital lease obligations $ 4766867 $ - 8 (577,049) $ 4,189,818 $ 575,669 $ 3,614,149
Deferred gain on refunding 681,123 - (91,837) 589,286 - 589,286
Finance obligation 116,942,900 - (1,678,414) 115,264,486 1,807,484 113,457,002
Compensated absences payable 899,978 823,098 (756,471) 966,605 756,471 210,134
Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims 390,000 215,950 (97,000) 508,950 508,950 -
Net other postemployment benefits 3,036,541 533,100 (49,167) 3,520,474 - 3,620,474
Total MTS 126,717,409 1,572,148 (3,249,938) 125,039,619 3,648,574 121,391,045
San Diego Transit Corporation:
Pension obligation bonds 40,510,000 - (14,630,000) 25,880,000 1,915,000 23,965,000
Compensated absences payable 8,572,345 3,984,336 (4,134,207) 8,422,474 4,134,207 4,288,267
Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims 10,293,000 1,525,943 (2,481,213) 9,337,730 2,015,000 7,322,730
Net other postemployment benefits 3,405,264 1,442,600 (840,906) 4,006,958 - 4,006,958
Total San Diego Transit Corporation 62,780,609 6,952,879 (22,086,326) 47,647,162 8,064,207 39,582,955
San Diego Trolley, Inc.:
Compensated absences payable 2,752,302 3,033,316 (3,005,957) 2,779,661 2,564,824 214,837
Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims 3,581,000 (52,717) (1,126,000) 2,402,283 870,939 1,531,344
Net other postemployment benefits 5,676,864 644,200 (152,683) 6,168,381 - 6,168,381
Total San Diego Trolley, Inc 12,010,166 3,624,799 (4,284,640) 11,350,325 3,435,763 7,914,562
Total $ 201,508,184 $ 12,149,826 $ (29,620,904) $ 184,037,106 $ 15148544 $ 168,888,562
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Due within one year:
Compensated absences payable $ 7,455,502
Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims 3,394,889
Long-term debt 2,490,669
Long-term debt payable from restricted assets 1,807,484
$ 15,148,544

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt payable from restricted assets
Compensated absences payable
Accrued damage, injury and employee claims
Net other postemployment benefits
Long-term debt
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Note 10 — Long-Term Debt (Continued)
B. Capital Lease

The County of San Diego (the County) has a master lease agreement with the MTS Joint Powers Agency (Agency)
for the lease of the MTS Tower building. MTS entered into a sublease agreement with the County for a portion
(27.61%) of the MTS Tower building. The sublease is classified as a capital lease because 27.61% of the title
transfers to MTS at the end of the County’s master lease. The master lease terminates on November 1, 2086;
however, the County has the option to terminate the agreement on November 1, 2041 and each tenth anniversary
thereafter. In May 2011, San Diego County refunded the underlying debt obligation in order to secure a more
favorable interest rate, which will result in a $1.3 million reduction in future principal and interest payments under
the terms of the lease agreement. A $788,266 net economic gain from the refunding, which is the difference
between the present value of the minimum payments on the refunded debt and the present value of the minimum
payments on the refunding debt, has been deferred. The deferred gain will be amortized as a component of interest
expense over the life of the refunding debt, which is the same life as the refunded debt.

The asset acquired through a capital lease is as follows:

2013 2012
Building - MTS Tower $ 12,091,981 $ 12,091,981
Less accumulated depreciation (9,257,923) (8,880,049)
Total $ 2834058 $ 3211932

The following is a summary of future minimum payments under the capital lease as of June 30, 2013:

Tower Lease

Year ending June 30: Payments
2014 $ 736,704
2015 750,550
2016 731,665
2017 739,617
2018 743,537
2019-2020 1,116,204
Total minimum lease payments 4,818,277
Less amount representing interest (628,459)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 4189818

At June 30, 2013, the future minimum payments were $4,189,818.
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Note 10 — Long-Term Debt (Continued)

C. Finance Obligations

The following is a summary of changes in finance obligations for the year ended June 30, 2013:

Amounts due  Amounts due

Balance Balance within one in more than

July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions June 30, 2013 one year one year
1995 LRV Lease/Leaseback $116,942,900 $ - % (1,678,414) $115264,486 $ 1,807,484  $113,457,002
Pension Obligation Bonds 40,510,000 - (14,630,000) 25,880,000 1,915,000 23,965,000
Total Finance Obligations $157,452,900 $ - $(16,308,414) $141,144486 $ 3,722,484  $137,422,002

1995 LRV Lease/Leaseback

In fiscal year 1996, MTS entered into a master lease to lease 52 light rail vehicles to an investor and then
simultaneously entered into a sublease agreement to lease them back. MTS received prepayments of the master
lease from the investor of approximately $102.7 million, of which it used approximately $90.7 million to place two
investments that will be used to make the interest and principal payments on the finance obligation. MTS placed
$78.8 million in a fixed rate deposit and invested $11.9 million in government zero-coupon bonds. The interest
earned on the deposit, together with the principal amount of the deposit and the maturities of the zero-coupon
bonds are sufficient to cover the amounts due under the finance obligation. As of June 30, 2013, the remaining
future obligations total $115,264,486.

Year ending June 30: Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 1,807,484 $ 5759506 $ 7,566,990
2015 21,361,390 5,689,623 27,051,013
2016 21,495,358 5,560,115 27,055,473
2017 4,923,324 5,240,909 10,164,233
2018 4,642,844 4,873,030 9,515,874
2019-2023 37,342,982 17,303,046 54,646,028
2024-2026 23,691,104 2,015,568 25,706,672

$115,264,486  _$ 46,441,797 $161,706,283

For the above lease transaction, MTS is obligated to insure and maintain the equipment. The lease agreement also
provide for MTS’ right to continued use and control of the equipment. The LRVs acquired under the various
finance obligations have been transferred to and are recorded by SDTI. For the 1995 LRV lease/leaseback, as well
as the 1990 sale/leaseback that was retired in 2008, MTS has also agreed to indemnify the lessors for any taxes
imposed by United States taxing authorities.
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Note 10 — Long-Term Debt (Continued)

C. Finance Obligations (Continued)

Pension Obligation Bonds

In October 2004, MTS issued $77,490,000 of Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds (POBSs) for the benefit of SDTC.
The purpose of the bonds was to make contributions to the San Diego Transit Corporation Retirement Plan and
reduce its unfunded liability. This is in essence a hedge versus the assumed investment rate of 8% used by the
actuary to determine the Actuarial Accrued Liability. The proceeds less fees were invested into the retirement
plan. The bonds consist of the following:

Series A Bonds of $38,690,000 are fixed rate bonds that mature in annual installments between 2006 and 2024 and
bear an interest rate from 2.58% to 5.15% increasing progressively over the maturities. Interest is due and payable
semi-annually on June 1 and December 1. Principal is due and payable each year on December 1.

The Taxable Pension Obligation Refunding Bonds 2009 Series A of $30,000,000 are variable rate bonds that
mature December 23, 2015. Interest is adjusted on a weekly basis indexed to LIBOR and payable on a monthly
basis. The refunding bonds were issued in 2009 to retire the Series B Bonds of $38,800,000 issued in 2004, which
were variable rate bonds that matured in annual installments between 2024 and 2034. The Taxable Pension
Obligation Refunding Bonds 2009 Series A were retired in December 2012.

At June 30, 2013, the outstanding balance of the Pension Obligation Bonds is $25,880,000.

Year ending June 30: Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 1915000 $ 1238882 $ 3,153,882
2015 2,005,000 1,149,100 3,154,100
2016 2,100,000 1,052,065 3,152,065
2017 2,205,000 947,884 3,152,384
2018 2,315,000 838,500 3,153,500
2019-2023 13,495,000 2,280,387 15,775,387
2024 1,845,000 47,509 1,892,509

$ 25,880,000 $ 7,554,327 $ 33,434,327

Note 11 — Risk Management

MTS (including SDTI, SDTC, and Other Contracted Services) is self-insured for liability claims to a maximum of
$2,000,000 per occurrence. Amounts in excess of the self-insured retention limits for public liability are covered
through commercial insurance carriers up to $75,000,000. MTS, SDTI, and SDTC purchase all-risk (excluding
earthquake) insurance coverage for property damage up to $600,000,000 per occurrence with deductibles ranging from
$25,000 to $250,000, depending on the peril involved. In addition, MTS, SDTC, and SDTI are self-insured for costs
arising from employee workers’ compensation act benefit claims including employer’s liability to a retained limit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence. Amounts in excess of $1,000,000 are insured up to statutory limits. SDTC and MTS are
self-insured for unemployment claims. SDTC and SDTI have policies for crime coverage through commercial
insurance.
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Note 11 — Risk Management (Continued)

Claims expenditures and liabilities in connection with these self-insurance programs are reported when it is probable
that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. These losses include an estimate of
claims that have been incurred but not reported based upon past experience, modified for current trends and
information. Claim payments up to $2,000,000 per incident were recorded as general and administrative expenses in
the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Claim payments did not exceed insurance coverage
in any of the past three years.

Current year
claims and
Beginning of changes Claims End of
fiscal year in estimates payments fiscal year
MTS:

2010-2011 $ 14643000 $ 2,808,963 $ (3,023,963) $ 14,428,000
2011-2012 14,428,000 2,313,883 (2,477,883) 14,264,000
2012-2013 14,264,000 1,689,176 (3,704,213) 12,248,963

Following is summary of accrued damage injury, and employee claims for fiscal years 2013 and 2012:

Accrued damage, injury and employee claims 2013 2012
Current portion $ 3394889 $ 3,036,806
Non-current portion 8,854,074 11,227,194
Total $ 12248963 $ 14,264,000

MTS has established a policy to consolidate the minimum balances required in the liability claims reserve accounts of
SDTC and SDTI to be held by MTS. The policy also established eligible uses for the MTS reserve account, which
included the reimbursement to SDTC and SDTI of awards/settlements of individual liability claims for personal injury
and/or property damage in excess of $300,000, but within the self-insurance retention at SDTC and SDTI. In
connection with these self-insurance programs, liabilities for SDTC, SDTI and MTS were $12,248,963 at
June 30, 2013 and $14,264,000 at June 30, 2012.

The Board has designated $2,000,000 for the purposes of funding the future claims liabilities of MTS, SDTI, and
SDTC.
Note 12 — Contingencies

Pending legal actions. MTS, SDTC and SDTI have been named in certain legal actions pending at June 30, 2013.
While the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of management of MTS, SDTC and
SDTI, based in part on the advice of counsel, the resolution of these matters is not expected to have a material adverse
effect on the financial position or results of operations of MTS, SDTC, or SDTI, or is adequately covered by insurance.

Pledged Revenue. SDTC has pledged future revenues pursuant to the provision of the Pension Obligation Bonds
issued by SDTC in 2004.
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Note 12 — Contingencies (Continued)

Contingent Tax Liability Related to Leaseback Agreements. During 1990 and 1995 MTS entered into sale/leaseback
and lease/leaseback arrangements related to the acquisition of trolley cars. These agreements provided tax benefits for
the purchaser/lessor. Certain terms of the agreements call for repayment to the purchaser/lessor if the tax
consequences of the agreement are lost or changed due to changes in the Internal Revenue Code. Subsequent changes
in the Internal Revenue Code may cause an amount to be repaid to the purchaser/lessor, which is essentially the portion
of the proceeds relating to the tax benefits lost by the purchaser/lessor. No repayment has been requested to date, and
the amount of any future request is not estimable at this time.

Contingent Tax Liability Related to Component Unit. MTS learned in FY2007 that the freight operator who has
managed SD&AE operations in the past filed federal and state corporate tax returns through calendar year 2005, which
were not required for this not for profit corporation. Under the direction of tax consultants, MTS directed that the
freight operator prepare a final return for calendar year 2007. Because SD&AE has never reported taxable income,
because the federal and state statutes provide exemption from income tax for not for profit corporations, and because
the fiscal tax year 2007 is now closed management does not anticipate future examinations of these returns or any
future tax liability.

Note 13 — Postemployment Health Care Benefits

Plan Description. As of January 1, 2011, all employees at MTS, all management employees at SDTI and SDTC, and
all union employees at SDTI participated in HMO and PPO plans offered by Kaiser and Anthem. As in years past,
SDTC has provided payments to operator and maintenance employee unions for provision of postemployment benefits
as determined by each union. Total MTS payments for the year ended June 30, 2013 were $49,167 for 9 retirees
currently receiving postemployment health care benefits. Total SDTI payments for the year ended June 30, 2013 were
$152,683 for 25 retirees currently receiving benefits. Total SDTC payments for the year ended June 30, 2013 were
$433,836 for 45 management retirees plus $407,070 for 156 union retirees currently receiving benefits. Because the
three plans are funded as expenses are incurred, there are no accumulated plan assets and no separate benefit plan
reports are available at this time.

The Plan's Net OPEB Obligation (NOO) is the cumulative excess of prior Annual Required Contribution (ARC) over
benefit payments and contributions, with annual adjustments for interest and amortization. The reconciliation of NOO
over fiscal year 2013 is as follows:

Net OPEB Obligation (NOO)

MTS SDTI SDTC Total
NOO at June 30, 2012 $ 3036541 $ 5676864 $ 3405264 $ 12,118,669
Benefit payments paid outside of a trust (49,167) (152,683) (840,906) (1,042,756)
Estimated contributions to a trust - - - -
Annual Required Contribution 526,600 631,900 1,435,300 2,593,800
Accrued interest on June 30, 2012 NOO 136,600 255,500 153,200 545,300
Amortization of June 30, 2012 NOO (130,100) (243,200) (145,900) (519,200)
NOO at June 30, 2013 $ 3520474 $ 6168381 $ 4006958 $ 13,695,813
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Note 13 — Postemployment Health Care Benefits (Continued)

Eligibility. Employees are eligible after attaining age/service years of 50/10 for MTS and SDTI management, 50/15 for
SDTI union, 53/10 for SDTC management, and 55/5 for SDTC unions.

Participants as of June 30, 2012 (most current available) Total
Current retirees and surviving spouses 237
Other participants fully eligible for benefits 330
Other participants not yet fully eligible for benefits 964
Total 1,531

Funding policy. The contribution requirements of plan members and MTS are established by management and may be
amended. The contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2013 MTS
contributions to the plan were $1,042,756 (or 49.29% of total gross health costs), while retirees contributed $1,072,969
(or 50.71% of total gross health costs).

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. MTS' annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the
sponsoring employer's Annual Required Contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabilities (UAAL) as a level
percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows
the components of MTS' ARC and Annual OPEB Cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plans, and
the changes in MTS' Net OPEB Obligation to the Plan:

All Groups
Normal Cost $ 1,050,300
Amortization of Unfunded AAL 1,543,500
Annual Required Contribution 2,593,800
Interest on beginning of year NOO 545,300
Amortization of beginning of year NOO (519,200
Annual OPEB cost 2,619,900
Contributions or Benefit Payments (726,656)
Implicit subsidy payments (316,100
Increase in net OPEB obligation 1,577,144
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 12,118,669
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 13,695,813

MTS' Annual OPEB Cost, the percentage of Annual OPEB Cost contributed to the plan and the Net OPEB Obligation
for fiscal years 2011, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

% of Annual

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB OPEB Cost Net OPEB
ended Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2011 $ 2,276,900 40.85% $ 10,458,280
June 30, 2012 2,628,300 36.83% 12,118,669
June 30, 2013 2,619,900 39.80% 13,695,813
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Note 13 — Postemployment Health Care Benefits (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of June 30, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was not
funded. The Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) for benefits was $37,018,400 and the actuarial value of assets was $0
compared to $31,643,500 and $0 as of June 30, 2009. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) as of June 30, 2011 was $65,775,100 and the ratio of Unfunded AAL to covered payroll was 56%
percent compared to $72,531,100 and 44% as of June 30, 2009.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The most recent funding progress schedules available for
MTS, SDTI and SDTC are presented below:

MTS (in 000s)

Actuarial Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll payroll
6/30/2011 $ - 3 3276 $ 3,276 0.00% $ 8,023 40.83%
SDTI (in 000s)
Actuarial Annual UAAL asa
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/2011 $ - 3 92417 § 9,417 0.00% $ 24,617 38.25%
SDTC (in 000s)
Actuarial Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/2011 - $ 24326 % 24,326 0.00% $ 33,136 73.41%

Actuarial review and analysis of OPEB liability and funding status is required every two years, or annually if there are
significant changes in the plan. The June 2011 study was completed during FY2012. The next study, which we will
based on activity through June 2013, will be completed during FY2014.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in Actuarial Accrued Liabilities consistent with the long-term perspective of
the calculations.

In the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation, the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method was used. The actuary assumed
4.5% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) which is the expected long-term investment returns on
the employer's own investments, a compensation increase of 3%, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate which varies
depending on the plan and type of health care service involved. Beginning in fiscal year 2012/2013, medical/drug
trends generally grade down from 7.5% and 8% to an ultimate of 4.5% by 2024/2025, while dental expense trends
grade down from 5.0% to an ultimate of 4.5% by 2018/2019. A general inflation rate of 3.0% was included in the
investment rate, compensation rate, and the health care cost trend rate. The UAAL is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll over a rolling 30 years.
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Note 14 — Employee Retirement Systems
A. MTS and SDTI
Plan Description and Provisions

MTS” and SDTI’s defined benefit pension plans (Plan) provide retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-
living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The plans are part of the Public Agency
portion of the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), an agent multiple-employer public
employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public
entities within the State of California. A menu of benefit provisions as well as other requirements is established by
State statutes within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. MTS and SDTI have selected optional benefit
provisions in their contracts with CalPERS and adopt these benefits through local ordinances. Copies of the
CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office — 400 P Street, Sacramento,
CA 95814.

Funding Policy

All employees working the equivalent of 1,000 hours per fiscal year are eligible to participate as members of
CalPERS. The age at which MTS and SDTI employees are eligible to retire varies based on when they joined the
Agency; all employees must have at least five years of vested service at separation to receive benefits. Annual
retirement benefits are determined based on age at retirement, the length of membership service, and the amount of
earnings based on the highest average pay rate in either a 12 or 36 month period (depending on when the employee
first became a CalPERS member). CalPERS also provides death and disability benefits.

The contribution requirements of the Plan members are established by State statute and the employer contribution
rate is established based on annual CalPERS actuarial studies of Plan assets and liabilities and participant
demographics. All MTS and SDTI employees are required to contribute a percentage of their gross pay to fund
their future retirement benefits. Employee contributions vary based on the applicable Collective Bargaining
Agreement, agency policy, and the date the employees’ CalPERS membership began. MTS and SDTI are required
to contribute the actuarially determined remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration.

The most recent funding progress schedule available for SDTI is presented below:

SDTI (in 000s)

Actuarial Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/2011 $ 77582 $ 88,127 $ 10,545 88.03% $ 24,097 43.76%

MTS is a member of the CalPERS risk pool for groups under 100 because the plan had less than 100 active
members for at least one valuation since June 30, 2003. As a result individual funding progress is not available for
MTS.
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Note 14 — Employee Retirement Systems (Continued)
A. MTS and SDTI (Continued)
Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2013, MTS’ and SDTI’s annual required employer contributions were $2,095,466 and $4,029,158,
respectively. Of these totals, employees contributed $66,436 and $1,398,251. The required contribution for fiscal
year 2013 was determined as part of the June 30, 2010, actuarial valuation using the Entry Age Normal Actuarial
Cost Method with the contributions determined as a percent of pay. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.50%
investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses); (b) projected salary increases from 3.30% to 14.20%
depending on age, service, and type of employment; (c) 3.00% payroll growth adjustment; (d) 2.75% inflation
adjustment; and (e) a merit scale varying by duration of employment coupled with an assumed annual inflation
growth of 2.75% and an annual production growth of 0.25%. The actuarial value of the assets of both plans was
determined using a technique that smoothes the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of investments
over a fifteen-year period depending on the size of investment gains and/or losses. MTS’ and SDTI’s initial
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (or excess assets) is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll
on a closed basis depending on the plan’s date of entry. Subsequent gains and losses are amortized over variable
periods depending on the events precipitating the gain or loss. The average remaining amortization period at
June 30, 2011, the most recent valuation date, was 20 years for MTS and 27 years for SDTI.

Trend information for MTS (in 000s):

Annual
Fiscal Year Required Percentage of
Ended Contribution Actual ARC
June 30: (ARC) Contribution Contributed
2011 $ 1,647  $ 1,647 100%
2012 2,021 2,021 100%
2013 2,095 2,095 100%
Trend information for SDTI (in 000s):
Annual
Fiscal Year Required Percentage of
Ended Contribution Actual ARC
June 30: (ARC) Contribution Contributed
2011 $ 3565 $ 3,565 100%
2012 3,908 3,908 100%
2013 4,029 4,029 100%
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Note 14 — Employee Retirement Systems (Continued)
B. SDTC
Plan Description

The San Diego Transit Corporation (SDTC) Employee Retirement Plan (Plan) provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to eligible Plan members and beneficiaries. Full-
time employees and certain part-time noncontract employees who have completed one year of service in which
they have worked at least 1,000 hours of service, and certain part-time contract employees participate in the Plan.
To be eligible for participation in the defined benefit plan, the employee must have been hired before November
25, 2012 if they are an Amalgamated Transit Union (ATU), Local 1309 member, or before April 28, 2011 if they
are an International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local 465 member.

Beginning in FY 2011, SDTC negotiated changes to retirement benefits for ATU Local 1309 members and IBEW
Local 465 members. ATU Local 1309 represented employees hired after November 25, 2012 and IBEW local 465
represented employees hired after April 28, 2011 will receive their retirement benefits from a defined contribution
401(a) plan. Based on the applicable Collective Bargaining Agreement, SDTC contributes a fixed percentage of
each employee’s gross wages to a 401(a) account and matches voluntary employee contributions up to a maximum
of 2% of the employees’ gross wages.

SDTC issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the Plan. The financial report may be obtained by writing to San Diego Transit Corporation, 1255
Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101.

Funding Status and Progress

The SDTC defined benefit pension plan is funded with both employer and employee contributions. Required
funding levels are determined by annual independent actuarial studies comparing plan assets and liabilities and
participant demographics. Employee contributions vary based on the applicable Collective Bargaining Agreement,
agency policy, and the date the employees’ membership began. After deducting employee contributions, SDTC
contributes the remaining balance necessary to achieve the actuarially required funding level. The valuation
method used to calculate the contribution for the Plan is the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method which is a
projected benefit cost method.

According to this cost method, the normal cost for an employee is the level amount which would fund the
projected benefit if it were paid annually from date of eligibility until retirement. The significant actuarial
assumptions used to compute the actuarially determined contribution requirements included (a) 7.50% investment
rate of return, (b) projected salary increase of 3.25% to 14% depending on age, service, and type of employment;
(c) 3% inflation adjustment; and (d) cost of living adjustments up to 2% annually for certain Non-Contract
members only. The actuarial value of the assets of the plan was determined using a technique that smoothes the
effect of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period depending on the size of
investment gains and/or losses. SDTC’s initial unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. Subsequent gains and losses are amortized over variable periods
depending on the events precipitating the gain or loss. The average remaining amortization period at July 1, 2012,
the most recent valuation date, was 25 years.
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B. SDTC (Continued)
The most recent schedule of funding progress for SDTC is presented below:

SDTC (in 000s)

Actuarial Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL Liability Status Payroll Payroll
711/2012 $ 147787 $ 235401 $ 87,614 62.78% $ 33,393 262.37%

Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the annual pension cost of $10,957,255 for the pension plan was equal to
SDTC’s required and actual contributions. Of this total, employees contributed $401,274. The required
contribution was determined as part of the July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method.
Following is the most recent data available.

Trend information for SDTC (in 000s):

Annual
Fiscal Year Required Percentage of
Ended Contribution Actual ARC
June 30: (ARC) Contribution Contributed
2011 $ 7,753 $ 7,753 100%
2012 10,132 10,132 100%
2013 10,957 10,957 100%

Note 15 — Other Required Individual Fund Disclosures

SDTC had unrestricted net deficits of $15,881,180 at June 30, 2013 compared to $21,072,108 at June 30, 2012. The
deficit is primarily a result of the timing difference between recognition of expenses on an accrual basis and when
those expenses are funded by subsidy transfers. MTS expects that this deficit will be funded with future subsidies.

Note 16 — Subsequent Events

MTS negotiated a sale of a property commonly known as the Pyramid Van Lines Building. The property, 1603 Main
Street, is located at the southwest corner of Main Street and Sigsbee Street in the Barrio Logan neighborhood of the
City of San Diego (APN 538-210-25). The parcel is 3.59 acres and is improved with a 90,000 square-foot warehouse.
The property is contiguous and directly east of the existing trolley yard. The purchase of the property is for the last
remaining viable yard expansion property. The purchase price for the property was $16,610,000 plus closing costs,
engineering studies, and brokers fees.
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS OF DEFINED PENSION PLAN

The following Schedule of Funding Progress shows the recent history of the actuarial value of assets, actuarial accrued
liability, their relationship, and the relationship of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to payroll. (Amounts in
thousands of dollars).

MTS

Beginning with the 6/30/2003 valuation, CalPERS established a risk pool for cities and other government entities that

have less than 100 active members. Actuarial valuation was performed with other participants within the same risk
pool. Therefore, standalone information for the Schedule of Funding Progress for MTS is not available.

SDTI (in 000s)

Actuarial Annual UAAL asa
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/2009 $ 65,117 $ 74,005 $ 8,888 87.99% $ 23,501 37.82%
6/30/2010 71,032 79,497 8,466 89.35% 23,364 36.24%
6/30/2011 77,582 88,127 10,545 88.03% 24,097 43.76%
SDTC (in 000s)
Actuarial Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
7/1/2010 $ 152,896 $ 226,821 % 73,925 67.41% $ 31,889 231.82%
7/1/2011 151,113 236,875 85,762 63.79% 32,573 263.29%
7/1/2012 147,787 235,401 87,614 62.78% 33,393 262.37%

In the valuation as of July 1, 1999, the entire Actuarial Accrued Liability had been funded. A new Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability was created as of April 1, 2000, primarily as a result of improvements in Plan benefits. Therefore,
beginning with the April 1, 2000 actuarial valuation, all sources of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability are
combined and amortized as a level dollar payment over a rolling 30-year period.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

Required Supplementary Information (Continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2013

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS OF OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN

The following Schedule of Funding Progress shows the recent history of the actuarial value of assets, actuarial
accrued liability, their relationship, and the relationship of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to payroll.
(Amounts in thousands of dollars).

MTS (in 000s)

Actuarial Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/2007 $ 8292 % 8,292 0.00% $ 9,573 86.62%
6/30/2009 2,701 2,701 0.00% 8,281 32.62%
6/30/2011 3,276 3,276 0.00% 8,023 40.83%
SDTC (in 000s)
Actuarial Annual UAAL asa
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/2007 $ 26473  $ 26,473 0.00% $ 35,935 73.67%
6/30/2009 21,378 21,378 0.00% 37,463 57.06%
6/30/2011 24,326 24,326 0.00% 33,136 73.41%
SDTI (in 000s)
Actuarial Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/2007 $ 15399 $ 15,399 0.00% $ 17,749 86.76%
6/30/2009 7,565 7,565 0.00% 26,788 28.24%
6/30/2011 9,417 9,417 0.00% 24,617 38.25%

Actuarial review and analysis of OPEB liability and funding status is performed every two years or annually if
there are significant changes in the plan. The next scheduled actuarial review and analysis of OPEB liability and
funding status will be performed in FY2014 based on the year ending June 30, 2013.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Combining Schedule of Net Position
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Combining Schedule of Cash Flows
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — Budget and Actual:
Combined Operations
General Fund
Taxicab Administration
San Diego & Arizona Eastern Railway
Contract Services
San Diego Transit Corporation

San Diego Trolley, Inc.
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Statistical Section
(Unaudited)

Included in this section of the Metropolitan Transit System comprehensive annual financial report is detailed information
to assist in analysis and understanding of the information presented in the financial statements, notes and required
supplementary information.

Contents

Financial trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how MTS's financial position has changed over
time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain detailed information about the fare structures and revenue generated from transit operations
provided by MTS.

Debt Capacity
This schedule presents information to help the reader assess the affordability of MTS's current levels of outstanding debt
and MTS's ability to issue debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules provide service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in MTS's
financial report relates to the services MTS provides.

Operating Information

These schedules provide service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in MTS's
financial report relates to the services MTS provides.
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FINANCIAL TRENDS
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Operating Revenue by Source (in 000's)
Last Nine Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Federal State Operating  Local Operating

Ended Passenger Fares  Operating Funds Funds Funds Interest Other

San Diego Transit
2005 $ 21,383  $ 14200 $ 25862 $ 7,278 68 $ 800
2006 22,264 15,000 23,415 13,383 129 (526)
2007 22,298 15,000 29,360 9,901 63 1,115
2008 23,680 13,934 21,863 10,507 - 868
2009 27,882 17,177 24,496 14,416 271
2010 26,708 18,267 16,249 21,456 31
2011 26,056 19,894 29,435 18,307 166
2012 27,498 20,709 20,497 17,549 214
2013 28,621 20,266 31,954 18,886 33

San Diego Trolley
2005 25,855 10,651 1,741 8,279 880
2006 27,934 12,788 7,415 6,000 695
2007 27,402 15,325 6,279 6,000 469
2008 31,120 13,881 4,479 6,000 664
2009 33,454 16,616 787 7,043 997
2010 33,050 16,449 5,637 5,000 462
2011 34,673 14,912 5,497 5,000 1,220
2012 35,216 14,989 7,208 5,492 361
2013 35,554 22,426 3,379 5,000 625

MTS - Contract Services
2005 16,564 711 31,703 2,136 -
2006 17,382 137 455 - (345)
2007 18,935 200 36,300 1,778 (974)
2008 21,138 921 38,020 1,285 75
2009 23,857 4,681 29,581 1,456 64
2010 24,410 10,420 21,524 1,636 47
2011 24,036 4,641 28,857 2,002 -
2012 25,380 7,155 26,635 1,984 -
2013 26,476 5,595 28,132 2,368 -

Source: Audited Financial Statements.

In FY2006 MTS elected to present statistical data prospectively from 2005 forward, and will present one additional year of activity

to a maximum of ten years as of 2014.

72



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

Bus Cash Fares
One-way fare, local routes
Senior/disabled, local routes
Urban
Express
Senior/disabled Express
Premium
Senior/disabled Premium
Rural bus
Senior/disabled Rural bus
Sorrento Valley Coaster Connection
Senior/disabled Coaster Connection
Shuttles

Trolley Cash Fares
One-way fare, all stations
Senior/disabled one-way fare all stations
Downtown
Senior/disabled Downtown
1 station-20+ stations

Bus and Trolley Day Passes
Regional day pass
Region plus day pass

Bus and Trolley Monthly Passes

Regional monthly pass
Senior/disabled Regional
Youth Regional
Half-month/14-Day

Premium monthly pass
Senior/disabled Premium
Youth Premium
Half-month/14-Day

Local/Urban Bus/Express/Trolley

Express Bus (multi-zones)

Fare Structure

Last Seven Fiscal Years

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$ 225 §$ 225 $ 2.25 225 % 2.25 200 $ 175
1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10 0.75 0.75
- - - - - 2.25 2.25
2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 250 2.50 2.50-4.00
125 125 125 125 125 0.75 0.75
5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 -
2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 0.75 0.75
5.00-10.00 5.00-10.00 5.00-10.00 5.00-10.00 5.00-10.00 5.00-10.00 -
2.50-5.00 2.50-5.00 2.50-5.00 2.50-5.00 2.50-5.00 - -
- - - - 1.00 - -
- - - 0.50 - -
- - - - 1.00 1.00
2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 - -
1.25 125 125 125 125 1.00 1.00
- - - - 125 125 125
- - - 0.60 - -
- - - - 1.50-3.00 1.50-3.00
5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 - - -
12.00 12.00 14.00 14.00 - - -
72.00 72.00 72.00 72.00 68.00 64.00 -
18.00 18.00 18.00 18.00 17.00 16.00 14.50
36.00 36.00 36.00 36.00 34.00 32.00 29.00
43.00 43.00 43.00 43.00 41.00 - -
100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 90.00 - -
25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 22.50 - -
50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 45.00 - -
60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 54.00 - -
- - - - - - 58.00
- - - - - 64.00-84.00

Source: SANDAG Comprehensive Fare Ordinance, amendments effective July 1, 2009.

MTS has continued to convert all passengers to Compass Cards issued at a cost of $2.00. As of November 2012, MTS requires day
and monthly passes to be on Compass Cards. Passengers who purchase a day pass without a compass card on the bus are charged a

$2.00 fee.

In FY2007 MTS elected to present fare structure statistical data prospectively from 2007 forward, and will present one additional
year of activity to a maximum of ten years as of 2016. There were no changes to the fare structure for several years prior to 2008.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Farebox Recovery Percentages
Last Nine Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year San Diego San Diego MTS-Contract
Ended Transit Trolley Services
2005 26.67 54.25 31.97
2006 30.38 50.78 31.96
2007 30.44 48.97 33.05
2008 29.59 55.62 34.40
2009 34.31 57.15 40.00
2010 28.46 54.26 42.06
2011 31.22 57.41 40.37
2012 30.50 55.63 41.50
2013 29.01 53.98 42.31

Source: Audited financial statements; calculated as passenger revenue divided by operating expenses (less depreciation and OPEB),
interest expense, and miscellaneous expenses.

In FY2006 MTS elected to present statistical data prospectively from 2005 forward, and will present one additional year of activity to
a maximum of ten years as of 2014.

74



DEBT CAPACITY

75



'$30.N0S paystjand wouy
BaJR 90IAJIS S1IA 9y} 10} BIRp 3|geljal UIelqo 03 3NoIIp uaAcid Sey 1 8snedaq pue ‘pJemioy 900z Woly ajgejieAe si eleg Ajunod ofiaig ues oy eiep ajqeledwod asnedaq sabueyd
3SaY) apew Sey SIIN 'STOZ JO Se SieaA us) JO wnwixew e 01 A1IAIIOR JO Jeak [euonlippe auo jussald 1M pue JeaA 1ualnd ayl ybnoiyl 900z Wods ajnpayds syl siuasald S1IN
‘uolppe U] "eale adIAIBS S A 8yl uey) Jayres Alunod obiaig ues Jo |[e Joj Blep UM 3]npayods SIYl parelsal Sey pue Sonsiiels awooul Jo uoirejuasald ayy pabueyd SN ‘2T0ZA4 Ul

€T0ZA4 Ul spuog uonebi|qo uolsuad ajes a|qelieA ay) painai SLIN
ZT0ZA4 Ul spuog uonebhijgo uoisuad alel a|qeLieA ay3 uo awAed jediourid uoljiw G$ e apew S1 N
TTOZA4 Ul ases] [elided Jamo | sy} papunyal pue ases| Juswdinba feyded ayy painal S1IA
TTOZA4 Ul spuog uonebijqo uoisusd sres ajgerieA ayl uo uswAed jediounid uoljjiw g'ZT$ © apew S1N

0TO0Z A4 Ul 8duejeq uoljjiw 0g$ Bulurewsal ay) papunial pue spuog uoiebqo uoisuad a1el ajgeltea ay) uo juswAed fediounid uoljjiw g'8$ e spew S1 N

8002 A< Ul suoneBi|qo [eroueul) aa1y) painal SLIA
"SJUBLLIBILIS [eIoURUIY AU 0] S810U 81 Ul puNnoy aq ued 1gap Buipueisino ,S1 N Bulprebal sjielsg

S %800 yOE'PEE'SYT  000'088'SC - - 987'792'STT - - 8T8'68T'Y €102
15 %070 19/'6T2'29T  000°0T5'0F - - 006'Z76'9TT - - 198'99.'y 2102
S %TT0 9¥T'¥80'TLT  000'69C'LY - - 09%'T0G'8TT - - 989'/T€'G 1102
09 %ET'0 ¥20'06/'/8T  000'0ST'T9 - - 92.'876'61T - 06T'77 80T'2¥9' 010z
59 %10 TPP'9TT'00z  000°G9S'T. - - ¥79'262'T2T - TLY'LTT 92€'TYT'L 6002
19 %10 2€6'S9Y'€0z  000°0ZT'€L - - 965'075'22T - 1€1'18T 665'219', 8002
8. %LT0 8S8'86E'€EC  000'029'7L 000'GST'6T 0000LL'€ Z€7'669'€CT 88E'€78'E ETT'S5e 526'L0'8 1002
/8 %020 6E€'95€'95¢  000'GZ0'9Z  000'690'9¢ $ 000'0€¥'. $ 8IG'GLL'WCT $ 86LW.TET $ 6IL'61E $  +0E'916'8 § 9002

ende) awoou| [e101 spuog €002 200¢ )0e(ases]/asea]  Yoeqases/s|es wawdinb3 Jamo | 0g aunp

Jad10e@ [euos.ad uonebiqo uonedionueqd  uonedioned Ad1 5667 AYT1066T  -oseaT[ende) -sses [ended  papus JespA

Jo abejuadied uoisuad JO Saealyie)  JO SaredlIleD

s1es A |easiH 1ybig 1se]

adA 1L Aq1ga@ Buipuelsino jo oney
wigIsAS usuea | uenjodoss|n ofisig ues

76



DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

77



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Regional Population and Personal Income Statistics
Last Eight Fiscal Years

County of San  County of San San Diego

County of San  Diego Personal Diego Per County Average

Diego Income Capita Personal ~ Unemployment
Population (1)  (thousands) (1) Income (1) Rate (2)
2006 2,956,077 $ 129,600,000 $ 47,055 4.10%
2007 2,986,085 136,200,000 47,405 4.80%
2008 3,031,360 142,000,000 47,019 4.80%
2009 3,067,544 139,600,000 46,047 10.20%
2010 3,104,160 142,700,000 45,974 10.50%
2011 3,140,025 150,200,000 46,767 10.40%
2012 3,172,600 160,200,000 48,265 9.30%
2013 3,206,892 171,200,000 49,778 7.40%

Source:
(1) California Department of Transportation - Actuals 2006-2010, Estimates 2011-2013
(2) California Employment Development Department, June 2013

In FY2012, MTS changed the presentation of income statistics and has restated this schedule with data for all of San Diego County
rather than the MTS service area. In addition, MTS presents this schedule from 2006 through the current year and will present one
additional year of activity to a maximum of ten years as of 2015. MTS has made these changes because comparable data for San
Diego County Data is available from 2006 forward, and because it has proven difficult to obtain reliable data for the MTS service area
from published sources.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Full-Time and Part-Time Employees by Function
Last Nine Fiscal Years

Full-time and Part-time Employees at June 30

San Diego San Diego
MTS Transit Trolley Total
2005 73 927 528 1,528
2006 90 880 539 1,509
2007 121 866 527 1,514
2008 117 844 533 1,494
2009 114 824 530 1,468
2010 110 782 528 1,420
2011 116 758 543 1,417
2012 122 761 568 1,451
2013 136 786 599 1,521

Source: MTS payroll records.

In FY2006 MTS elected to present statistical data prospectively from 2005 forward, and will present one additional year of activity to
a maximum of ten years as of 2014.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Ten Largest Employers in San Diego County

Percent of

Number of 1,492,300
Company Name Employees (1) County Total (2)
U.S. Department of Defense 136,664 9.16%
Federal Government 46,100 3.09%
State of California 44,700 3.00%
University of California, San Diego 26,000 1.74%
County of San Diego 16,011 1.07%
San Diego Unified School District 14,438 0.94%
Sharp Healthcare 14,390 0.96%
Scripps Health 13,000 0.87%
Qualcomm Inc. 11,775 0.79%
City of San Diego 10,296 0.69%

Source:
(1) The Daily Transcript - 2013 Data updated June 28, 2013
(2) Employment Development Department, State of California

Note: County of San Diego employment information is presented. Employer information is not currently available for the area served
by the Metropolitan Transit System within San Diego County. MTS presents only current employment data for the county of San
Diego.
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6265 Greenwich Drive

b4 Suite 220

l San Diego, California 92122

PUN & McGEADY Phone: (858) 242-5100
Fax: (858) 242-5150

www.pm-llp.com

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors
of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
San Diego, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
(MTS), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 17, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered MTS’ internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of MTS’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of MTS’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether MTS’ financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.



To the Board of Directors

of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
San Diego, California
Page 2

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

fiae) § MeGonly 8

San Diego, California
October 17, 2013
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